Item 8.1

| HC FOR ANNO 140 MOL | | | |
|---|------------------------------------|--|--|
| MEETING TITLE: HIGHLAND CHILD PROTECTION COMMITTEE MEETING via MICROSOFT TEAMS Additional Meeting | DATE: 25 th May 2022 | | |
| PRESENT: Mhairi Grant – Independent Chair (Chair) Sally Amor - Child Health Commissioner/Public Health Specialist, NHS Highland Katrina Beaton – Principal Officer Social Care, HC Jane Davey – Principal Solicitor Corporate Governance, HC Fiona Duncan – Eco Health & social Care, GC Karen Erskine – Locality Reporter Manager, H & I, SCRA Beverley Hart – Chair, <u>HCPC/KCS Sub-Committee</u> , Training & Development Manager, CALA Nancy Healy – Lead Nurse, Child Protection (Health), HC Ian Kyle – Head of Integrated children's Services, HC Heidi May – Board Nurse Director, NHS Scotland Pol McClelland – Chair, HCPC/YJ Sub-Committee, HC Margret McIntyre – Head of Service, Children Y/P and Families, HC Carrie McLaughlan – Programme Manager, The Promise, HC Mairi Morrison – Strategic Lead, Early Intervention & Protection, HC Jane Park – Chair, <u>HCPC/Children Affected by Drugs & Alcohol (CYPADA) Sub-Committee</u> Tina Stones – Safeguarding Lead, Education, HC Craig Thomson – Chair, <u>HCPC/Exploitation Sub-Committee</u> , Police Scotland Mary Cameron – Clerk to HCPC, HC (Minutes) | | | |

APOLOGIES: Donna Munro – CP Lead Officer, HCOC, HC Stephanie Govenden - Lead Doctor, Child Protection, NHS Highland James Martin – Director, Corporate Services, HLH Donnie MacDonald – DCI, PPU, H &I Division, Police Scotland Tracie McDermott – Welfare Support Officer, Army Welfare Service Caroline MacKay - DI, PPU, H & I Division, Police Scotland George Hogg – Area Convenor, Highland & Moray, Children's Hearings Scotland Mike Harkin – Care Inspectorate Gordon MaCauley – Scottish Prison Service Nikki Grant – ECO, Education and Learning Gillian Pincock – Principal Officer, Nursing, HC Steve Walsh - Chief Executive, HLH David Goldie - Head of Housing and Building, HC

| NO. | AGENDA ITEM | SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION | ACTION/DECISIONS | RESPONSIBLE |
|-----|---|--|------------------------|--------------------------------------|
| 1 | Welcome and Apologies | The Chair welcomed members to a 'routine' meeting of the committee. | | Mhairi Grant |
| 2 | Minute of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising | Minutes agreed by committee. The 10-minute slot allocated to Beverley has been postponed until the next meeting. | | Mhairi Grant All |
| 3. | ICR/SCR/LR Updates | In camera | | Mhairi Grant |
| 4. | Inspection Update | An important week with the pre-inspection return due. Key leaders have been identified and the weekly 'Huddle' group has been set up. Details of the 800 children in scope are to be uploaded and sent to the inspectors who will select 60 at random. First newsletter hopefully out by the end of today. PD1 is on 01/06/2022 and is the first discussion with the Inspectorate. Staff survey has been issued and it must be completed. It is to be far reaching involving staff across the organisation but specifically to identify those staff who work with children at risk of harm. | | Margaret McIntyre and Ian Kyle |
| 5. | National Child Protection Guidance – Original Implementation Plan recirculated | CP Procedures are key processes and procedures in clear language. CP guidance are more national level processes/issues. Most responses from committee are in but those who have not yet responded will be contacted by Donna on her return . Key processes and responsibilities are to be allocated. | Donna Craig & Nancy | Mhairi Grant |

| NO. | AGENDA ITEM | SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION | ACTION/DECISIONS | RESPONSIBLE |
|-----|--|---|------------------|----------------------------------|
| | | Craig and Nancy to have an IRD discussion. SCIM model – Craig has a meeting scheduled but there are significant number of training days from 5 to 50 for each officer. It also needs to be modified to accommodate specific H & I issues, particularly around geography, challenges over such a huge area (even helicopters, planes and ferries have been put forward as options) are totally different to those in cities or smaller conurbations. Nancy also noted issues raised at the National IRD Group yesterday; around unborn IRDs, the issues surrounding 16 and 17 year olds and the inconsistency across Scotland on how these are handled | | Craig Thomson/ Nancy Healy |
| 6. | Draft Exploitation Proposal – paper attached | Paper due to be sent to COG. Notable high costs involved The growth in child exploitation highlights that a re-alignment of resources is needed, for instance; to divert one child from OOA care is the equivalent to employing 7 police officers. Sally – public health figures show there a considerably more children involved but by the time they come to the notice of services they are so far embedded in the culture they have nowhere to turn. It must be more than a police response and widened to include public health, social work and the Scottish sentencing agency. It also links in the Stephanie's work on drug deaths of which 50% are young people outside the care system. Parental separation plays a key part as does domestic abuse. We have an opportunity to be ahead of the curve and make sure we involve all services. Reduction of exploitation in young people is a must and hoping this document will get us on the right path. Sally pointed out the availability and prevalence of substances in Highland Beverley – 3rd sector organisations welcome the strengthening of resources and we must engage with young people as we move forward to establish where they are best placed. Also, we need to look at individual support for those children already being exploited. Craig – Liaison officers for all residential units are imperative Fiona – Figures to be checked and confirmed before progressing to COG Donna, Mhairi and Craig to meet and finalize figures. | | Craig Thomson |

| NO. | AGENDA ITEM | SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION | ACTION/DECISIONS | RESPONSIBLE |
|-----|---|--|----------------------|-------------------------------|
| | | Mhairi – CPC recognises the importance of this issue and cannot ignore the rise in numbers and the size and scope of the issues therein. Craig – We have an opportunity here to bring services together and help young people while improving workloads and expenditure. | Donna, Mhairi, Craig | |
| 7. | Standing Items | QA - Phase 1 on the audit is complete and will be issued 30/05/2022 and presented to CPC in August 2022. Dataset: Donna, Katrina and Ian to meet monthly, QA Sub- Committee to consider data quarterly and present to CPC 6 monthly. L & D - Nothing to report this meeting CAYPADA - Self-evaluation is complete with lots of positive ideas for change and a clear brief from the CPC. A new whole family approach will be adopted in conjunction with 'the Promise' and a community and partnership approach in regard to drugs and | | lan Kyle Jane Park |
| | | alcohol. Exploitation – Holly Drever has left her RISE post, this is now vacant as recent interviews have not been successful. It will be readvertised. Proposed PLACE meetings are waiting for member confirmation. KCS – Paper attached and nothing further to add. Beverley is still to have her first meeting with the sub-committee. CPC/Youth Justice – Josie Clark is now an accredited CARM trainer. Education on HSB is to be put out to schools. Working around not progressing 16 – 17 year olds to adult services. | | Craig Thomson Beverly Hart |
| 8. | Lead Officer Update – paper attached | Nothing extra to table. This document is always sent to the COG, National CPC and the CP Consortium and it is from this document we often receive requests from out of area. Interviews for the position of Training Officer have concluded and an offer made. Once references are received committee will be advised. We have funding for the post for 12 months. | | |
| 9. | AOCB | | | |
| | Attendance Policy Working Group | Attendance Policy is a high profile national issue. We have a robust framework and intend to be ready for August. We have a good team and good 3 rd sector support but need some help from CPC partners. | | Tina Stones |

| NO. | AGENDA ITEM | SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION | ACTION/DECISIONS | RESPONSIBLE |
|-----|---|--|-----------------------------------|----------------------|
| | <u>Carrie McLaughlin</u> : Language Workshop Discussion – paper attached | It will take about 3 hours between now and July to finalize the details prior to the August launch. Any volunteers, please get in touch asap – thank you. Mhairi – this is an important issue for the CPC. It is not just the lack of attendance, but what is behind it which causes concern. Carrie – the attached paper gives a brief outline of Language (The Promise). There is much discussion around this at present with social work, education, police, health and Highlife Highland involved in the working group. Carrie is more than happy to present to the CPC at a future meeting. Mhairi – We are all guilty of slipping into the wrong vocabulary/old habits a presentation would be very welcome. Nancy – Change must come from the top and is far reaching. For example: changing a DNA flag for missed appointments is generated by an IT system. There are multiple areas which must be looked into and addressed. | Agenda item for future meeting | Carrie McLaughlin |
| | <u>Communication</u> | Mhairi – Role of the CPC is not clearly understood across agencies and communities, and we must highlight its importance and scrutiny. Public awareness. Margaret – This is a national concern and one we should look at in order to raise the CPC profile and the understanding of it. | | |
| | <u>National Child Abuse</u> Inquiry | Fiona – Appeared before the child abuse enquiry. She was questioned on what learning the council took and whether the CPC involved. Once this enquiry is concluded, CPC to discuss the results Mhairi thanked everyone for their attendance and drew the meeting to a close at 1125. Reminder to all that the CPC Development session will take place on 22nd June 2022 from 1300-1500 via MS Teams. | | |
| | | | | |

HIGHLAND COUNCIL/NHS HIGHLAND JOINT MONITORING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting of the Highland Council/NHS Highland Joint Monitoring Committee held in the Chamber, Highland Council Headquarter, Inverness/Remotely on Wednesday 3 August 2022 at 10.45am.

PRESENT:-

Highland Council

Mr David Fraser (Vice Chair) Mr Raymond Bremner Mr Alasdair Christie Mr Edward Foster Mr Derek Louden Mrs Donna Manson

NHS Highland

Prof Boyd Robertson (Chair) Dr Tim Allison Ms Louise Bussell Ms Ann Clark Ms Pamela Dudek Mr Dave Garden

Staff Representatives

Ms Elspeth Caithness (NHS Highland)

Third Sector, Carer and Service User Representatives

Mr Campbell Mair (Highland Home Carers Limited) Mr Ian McNamara (Highland Senior Citizen's Network) Ms Mhairi Wylie (Highland Third Sector Interface) Ms Sandra Brown (Inspiring Young Voices)

Also in attendance

Mr Duncan MacPherson

Officers Present

Mr D Park, Chief Officer, NHS Highland Mrs F Malcolm, Interim Head of Integration Adult Social Care, Highland Council Ms G Grant, Interim Head of Commissioning, NHS Highland Mr I Kyle, Head of Integrated Children's Services, Highland Council Ms K Lackie, ECO Performance & Governance (Item 11) Mr F MacDonald, Head of Property & Facilities Management (Item 11) Mrs L Dunn, Principal Administrator, Highland Council Ms F MacBain, Committee Administrator, Highland Council

Prof Boyd Robertson in the Chair

1. Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair

In accordance with Standing Orders, the Chair of the Joint Monitoring Committee would rotate on an annual basis between the Chair of NHS Highland and the Chair of the Highland Council's Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Committee.

Whilst the Chair of the Joint Monitoring Committee was held by the Chair of the Council's Health Social and Wellbeing Committee, the Vice Chair would be the Chair of NHS Highland and vice versa.

The Committee **AGREED** to appoint Prof Boyd Robertson as Chair and Mr David Fraser as Vice Chair for the first year of the new scheme, after which they would alternate roles.

2. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Ms H May and Ms F Duncan.

3. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

Transparency Statement:

Mr A Christie declared a connection to several items on the agenda today in his capacity as a Non-Executive Director of NHS Highland. However, having applied the objective test, reviewed his position in relation to the items, and considered his personal connection, he did not consider that he had an interest to declare.

4. Minutes of Previous Meeting

There had been circulated and **APPROVED** Minutes of Meeting of the Joint Monitoring Committee held on 16 March 2022.

Issues arising were as follows:

- a. Under item 4.b of the minutes of 16 March 2022, reference had been made to an update being provided to the next meeting on the progress with developing the service for children that had been subject to sexual abuse. Assurance was given and it was **NOTED** that an update would be circulated to the Committee after the meeting; and
- b. **AGREED** that a rolling action plan to track progress be introduced.

5. Highland Partnership Commission Assurance Reporting

a. Adult Social Care Assurance Report

There had been circulated Report No. JMC/08/22 by the NHS Highland Chief Officer, North Highland Health and Social Care Partnership.

During discussion, the following main points were raised:

- Mr C Mair emphasised his availability to engage in dialogue / consultation in relation to third sector issues;
- rural and island equality and poverty were key issues, with reference to challenges around vacant posts and staff absence;
- discussion took place on the purpose of the report, its suitability in relation to scrutiny, and whether it should also go to the appropriate governance committees of both the Council and NHSH. Work was underway to develop a more integrated and meaningful report and some of the information

contained in the report was included in reports to other committees, as appropriate. It was important that work on the data set was progressed, without waiting for finalisation of the strategic plan;

- concern was expressed that there had been a reduction of 1,200 commissioned hours per week during 2021-2022, against the current unmet need of 1,700 hours per week;
- further clarity was sought and provided on the various funding streams and the uses to which they could be put. It was requested that further information on this be circulated to the Committee;
- reference was made to the need for ongoing improvement work to be considered in the context of partnership working, multi-agency responses, and wider socio-economic impacts such as Brexit, covid recovery, and national staffing challenges, with links to corporate risk registers;
- it was essential third sector engagement was undertaken in relation to workforce issues, and examples were provided of innovative efforts to address the vacancy situation and the importance of working collaboratively with the third sector to identify solutions;
- concern was expressed that the governance around additional funding decisions was not transparent and the need for these funds to be utilised in a partnership focussed approach was emphasised; and
- the Chair summarised integration and governance as key issues from the discussion.

The Committee NOTED the:-

- i. contents of the report and **AGREED** that further clarity be circulated to the Committee regarding the funding streams;
- ii. ongoing pressures across adult social care services, including NHS Highland and providers of commissioned services; and
- iii. detailed updates on care at home and the carers programme and NHS Highland's continued commitment and collaborative actions to sustain service provision, whilst responding to the ongoing pandemic and associated operational pressures.

b. Integrated Children's Services Assurance Report

There had been circulated Report No. JMC/09/22 by the Highland Council Executive Chief Officer Health & Social Care.

During discussion, the following main points were raised:

- in relation to young carers, assurance was sought and provided that services that had been unavailable during the Covid crisis were re-starting. It was important all agencies worked in partnership to identify young carers and that they were provided with similar levels of support as adult carers, including access to SDS;
- information was sought and provided on the roll out of learning from the Icelandic Model / Caithness Cares project, the Caithness Schools Survey, including the expansion of the substance awareness toolkit and the evaluation of a whole family pilot approach to drugs and alcohol within a primary school;
- information was sought and provided on third sector training in relation to the Promise, and progress with expenditure of the first tranche of families funding.

Assurance was sought that engagement on both would be undertaken with the third sector;

- child poverty was listed as one of the six partnership priorities for improvement but was not referenced significantly in the report. In response to a request, the Chair of the Highland Council Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Committee provided assurance that a report would be submitted to the next meeting of the Committee on the family wellbeing fund and child poverty. It was pointed out that wider issues such as child poverty were more appropriately placed with the Community Planning Partnership, with the JMC focussing on more specific delegated and conjoined issues;
- information was sought on the route for Inspections of Services for Children at Risk of Harm to be reported to and signed off by the Council and NHS Highland and confirmation was provided that information on the process, next steps, and the Committee's involvement would be circulated to the Committee;
- confirmation was sought that the appointment of a training officer and a Safe and Together Co-ordinator went some way to addressing recent references to the child protection function being under-resourced. Information was provided on work being undertaken to expand the brief of the Child Protection Committee to take on board some lessons learned during Covid; and
- it was emphasised that the JMC was not an Integration Joint Board and the Lead agency model used in Highland was summarised, as was the need to set out the governance arrangements more formally to ensure they were understood.

The Committee NOTED:-

- i. the work undertaken by the children's services planning partnership in delivering the Highland Integrated Children's Services Plan 2021 2023;
- ii. the work undertaken in other partnership areas; and
- iii. that further information would be circulated to the Committee setting out the process and the Committee's role in respect of Joint Inspections of Services for Children.

6. Highland Health & Social Care Partnership Finance Reports

a. Highland Health & Social Care Partnership Finance Report

There had been circulated Report No. JMC/10/22 by the NHS Highland Director of Finance.

During discussion, the following main points were raised:

- specific budget queries, including the use of NHS ring fenced funding, were responded to;
- it would be helpful to see commissioned hours of work shown alongside some of the budget figures, broken down by locality if possible, to help understand the relationship between the budget and unmet needs. However, the complexity of the situation was explained, as was the need for a wider lens to understand the impact of services on other services and localities; and
- attention was drawn to the importance of monitoring the run rates and the development of recurrent savings.

The Committee **NOTED** the financial position at the end of Month 3 2022/23.

b. Highland Council Finance Report

There had been circulated Report No. JMC/11/22 by the Highland Council Head of Corporate Finance.

The Committee **NOTED** the contents of the report.

7. Partnership Integration Scheme Implementation and Strategic Plan Update

There had been circulated Joint Report No. JMC/12/22 by the Highland Council Executive Chief Officer Health and Social Care and NHS Highland Chief Officer.

During discussion, information was sought and provided on timescales for finalisation of the strategic plan, progress with leadership for it, and whether investment and financial discussions were being taken into consideration. A rag status for implementation was requested and confirmation was provided that this information was already available and would be included in future reports. It was also asked that the decision-making process for all JMC partners be set out to ensure inclusivity and transparency. It was acknowledged that use of the budget in a holistic manner for the transformation agenda was a leadership challenge, with reference to the need to balance transformation with medium term financial planning.

The Committee:

- i. **NOTED** the contents of the report; and
- ii. **APPROVED** the proposed Terms of Reference of the Property Board.

8. Adult Social Care Transformation Plan

There was a presentation by the NHS Highland Chief Officer, North Highland Health and Social Care Partnership, on the Adult Social Care Transformation Plan.

During discussion, a key issue raised was having people supportively employed in a fair work environment in jobs that were respected as meaningful careers. Due to shortages of staff, there was an ongoing risk when recruiting for one area that this would leave a gap in staffing in another.

The Committee **NOTED** the presentation.

9. National Care Service

There was a verbal update by the Highland Council Head of Integration Adult Social Care on the National Care Service.

The National Care Service Bill was published for consultation with responses required by first week of September. The remit had been confirmed as being limited at the present time to the delivery of adult social care. A further Bill was anticipated dealing with local delivery issues, with further detail on this likely in December 2022. Both Chief Executives were involved with national meetings and would flag up any issues. It was important to avoid inaction while waiting for the development of the National Care Service. The Committee **NOTED** the update.

10. Date of Next Meeting

The Committee **NOTED** that the next meeting would be held on Wednesday 5 October 2022 at 10.30am in the Chamber, Highland Council Headquarters, Inverness.

CONFIDENTIAL

11. Independent Sector Care Home Sustainability

There had been circulated to members of the Committee only Confidential Joint Report No. JMC/13/22 by the Chief Executives of NHS Highland and Highland Council.

Following detailed discussion, the Committee **AGREED** the recommendations as set out in the report, additional actions raised during discussion, and to hold a further meeting to discuss the matter on Monday 8 August 2022.

The meeting ended at 1.50pm.

HIGHLAND COUNCIL/NHS HIGHLAND JOINT MONITORING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Meeting of the Highland Council/NHS Highland Joint Monitoring Committee held remotely on Monday 22 August 2022 at 4.30pm.

PRESENT:-

Highland Council

Mr David Fraser (Vice Chair) Mr Raymond Bremner Ms Fiona Duncan Mr Edward Foster Mr Derek Louden Mrs Donna Manson

NHS Highland

Prof Boyd Robertson (Chair) Dr Tim Allison Ms Louise Bussell Ms Heledd Cooper Mr D Park (substitute)

Staff Representatives

Ms Elspeth Caithness (NHS Highland)

Third Sector, Carer and Service User Representatives

Mr Campbell Mair (Highland Home Carers Limited) Mr Ian McNamara (Highland Senior Citizen's Network) Ms Sandra Brown (Inspiring Young Voices)

Officers Present

Mrs Fiona Malcolm, Interim Head of Integration Adult Social Care, Highland Council Ms Gillian Grant, Interim Head of Commissioning, NHS Highland Ms Elaine Ward, Deputy Director of Finance, NHS Highland Mrs Lorraine Dunn, Principal Administrator, Highland Council Ms Fiona MacBain, Committee Administrator, Highland Council

Prof Boyd Robertson in the Chair

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Mr A Christie, Ms A Clark, Ms P Dudek, Mr J Gibson, Ms H May and Ms M Wylie.

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3. Exclusion of the Public

The Committee **RESOLVED** that, under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 6 & 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A of the Act.

4. Independent Sector Care Home Sustainability

There had been circulated to members of the Committee only Confidential Joint Report No. JMC/14/22 by the Chief Executives of NHS Highland and Highland Council.

Following detailed discussion, the Committee:

- i. **AGREED** the recommendations as set out in the report and for a communications strategy to be developed;
- ii. **AGREED** that a robust response be prepared to the Minister's letter dated 11 August 2022 addressing the misconceptions and to include reference to the challenges with developing a strategic plan without clarity of the National Care Strategy;
- iii. **AGREED** that further information be provided on the timescale in respect of the development of the strategic plan;
- iv. **NOTED** that the Highland Council and NHS Highland Chief Executives would be attending a meeting with the Permanent Secretary and senior civil servants and **AGREED** that they make representations at this meeting on the significant challenges being faced, service user and carer views (a separate meeting to be held with third sector representatives in order to ascertain their feedback) and the impact of the increasing energy costs;
- v. **NOTED** the need for Highland Council and NHS Highland to establish a formalised position of joint financial risk;
- vi. **NOTED** that a response would be pursued from the Western Isles Council regarding care home sustainability; and
- vii. **NOTED** the need for further special meetings to be scheduled.

The meeting ended at 5.15pm.